
  

  
 

 

 

 

 

City Council Meeting  

City Council Chambers 

145 West Broad Street  

Spartanburg, SC 

Monday, September 26, 2016 

5:30 p.m. 

 

 

I. Moment of Silence 

 

II. Pledge of Allegiance  

  

 III.     Approval of the Minutes of the September 12, 2016, City Council Meeting 

 

 IV.       Approval of Agenda of the September 26, 2016 City Council Meeting 
 

 V.        Public Comment 
 *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 

 

VI. Recognition of City Retirees MPO Tony Horton and MPO Charles Tillotson 

 Presenter:  Mayor pro tem Sterling Anderson 

 

VII. Presentation of National Night Out Proclamation to Neighborhood Representatives 

 Presenter:  Mayor pro tem Sterling Anderson 

 

 VIII. Ordinance 

 

 A. Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Deed to Spartanburg Housing  

  Authority Conveying Property Located at 581 Vernon Street, Block Map  

  Number 7-12-01-140.03; and 589 Vernon Street, Block Map Number   

  7-12-01-140.01 (First Reading) 

  Presenter:  Martin Livingston, Neighborhood Services Director 

 

IX. Resolution 

 

 A. Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Survey Agreement 

  Presenter:  Martin Livingston, Neighborhood Services Director 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

CITY OF SPARTANBURG 
                                          SOUTH CAROLINA 

As required by the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Spartanburg will provide interpretive services for the City Council 

Meetings. Requests must be made to the Communications & Marketing Office (596-2020) 24 hours in advance of the meeting. This is a 

Public Meeting and notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours in advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. 

 

 

 

 

 



  

* Non-Agenda Items 

  City Code Sec. 2-57. Citizen Appearance. Any citizen of the City of  Spartanburg may speak at a regular meeting on any matter   

  pertaining to City Services and operations germane to items within the purview and authority of City Council, except personnel  

  matters, by signing a Citizen’s Appearance form prior to the meeting stating the subject and purpose for speaking. No item  

  considered by Council within the past twelve (12) months may be added as an agenda item other than by decision of City  

  Council. The forms may be obtained from the Clerk and maintained by the same. Each person who gives notice may speak at the  

  designated time and will be limited to a two (2) minute presentation. 

 

 *Agenda Items 

  City Code Sec. 2-56. Addressing Council, Comments or Remarks to Council on Agenda Items Not Requiring Public Hearing. On    

  agenda items not requiring a Public Hearing, please provide to the City Clerk prior to the opening of the meeting, your desire to  

  speak on an agenda item. Remarks shall be limited to five (5) minutes and total remarks on any agenda item shall not exceed  

  twenty (20) minutes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X. Consent Agenda 

 

 A. Ordinance Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Deed to Northside  

  Development  Group Conveying Property Located at 438 Mill Street, Block Map 

  Number 7-12-05-336.00; 446 Mill Street, Block Map Number 7-12-05-335.00; and 

  464 Mill Street, Block Map Number 7-12-05-332.00 (Second Reading) 

  Presenter:  Martin Livingston, Neighborhood Services Director 

 

 B. Consideration of an Ordinance Authorizing the Condemnation of Tax Map  

  Parcel 7-12-05-345.00 Needed for The Butterfly Creek Daylighting and Park  

  Projects (Second Reading) 

  Presenter:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 

 

XI. Other Business 

 

 A. Declaration of Vacancy on the Housing Authority Board 

  Presenter:  Connie McIntyre, City Clerk 

           

XII.        City Council Updates 

    

XIII.       Executive Session Pursuant to Section 30-4-70 (a) (5) of the South Carolina Code                

               to Discuss Matters Relating to Encouraging the Location of Two Businesses in the City 

   

              Council may take action on matters discussed in Executive Session after exiting              

              Executive Session. 

  

XIV.      Adjournment    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Agenda 
Page Two – September 26, 2016 



  

 

          
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

III.  



1 

 

  
City Council Meeting  

City Council Chambers 

145 West Broad Street  

Spartanburg, SC 

Monday, September 12, 2016 

5:30 p.m. 

 

(These minutes are subject to approval at the  

September 26, 2016 City Council meeting.) 

 

City Council met this date with the following members present: Mayor Junie White, Mayor 

pro tem Sterling Anderson, Councilmembers Jerome Rice, Erica Brown, Laura Stille and 

Rosalyn Henderson Myers. Councilmember Jan Scalisi was absent due to illness. City 

Manager Ed Memmott and City Attorney Cathy McCabe were also in attendance. Notice 

of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours in advance according to the Freedom of 

Information Act. All City Council meetings are recorded for a complete transcript. 

 

I. Moment of Silence - observed 

 

II. Pledge of Allegiance - recited  

  

 III.     Approval of the Minutes of the August 22, 2016, City Council Meeting – 

  Councilmember Rice made a motion to approve the minutes as received.        

  Councilmember Stille seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 

 

 IV.       Approval of Agenda of the September 12, 2016 City Council Meeting –  

  Councilmember Stille made a motion to approve the agenda as received.       

  Councilmember Henderson Myers seconded the motion, which carried        

  unanimously 6 to 0. 
 

 V.        Public Comment 
 *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 

 Dr. Tom Norrell, 233 N. Church St., Pastor of Central United Methodist Church, 

spoke regarding concerns about Level 2 parking in the St. John St. Parking garage, used 

by church parishioners. He asked that this issue be considered during the renovation of 

the Montgomery Building. 

 

VI. Ordinance 

 A. Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Deed to Northside Development  

  Group Conveying Property Located at 438 Mill Street, Block Map Number  

  7-12-05-336.00; 446 Mill Street, Block Map Number 7-12-05-335.00; and 464  

  Mill Street, Block Map Number 7-12-05-332.00 (First Reading) 

  Presenter:  Martin Livingston, Neighborhood Services Director 

  “Mr. Livingston presented the item to Council as follows: 



2 

 

  In May 2010, the City of Spartanburg purchased property in the Northside   

  Neighborhood using CDBG funds.  In an effort to remove the existing   

  substandard structures, staff is requesting the approval of the sale of the parcels to 

  the Northside Development Group.  The Northside Development Group will  

  collaborate with VCOM and the Northside community to develop the sites at a  

  later date.  The Northside Development Group will use Neighborhood   

  Improvement Programs (NIP) funds to purchase and demolish the structures. 

 

 

Property Address Tax Map Number Property Type Sale Amount 

464 Mill Street 7-12-05-332.00 Vacant Lot 15,000.00 

446 Mill Street 7-12-05-335.00 House  20,000.00 

438 Mill Street 7-12-05-336.00 House  20,000.00 

                                                                                                            

  ACTION REQUESTED:  Approval of an Ordinance conveying the property at  

  464 Mill Street, 446 Mill Street, and 438 Mill Street to the Northside   

  Development Group for the total purchase price of $55,000.00. 

 

  BUDGET AND FINANCIAL DATA:  CDBG program income in the amount of  

  $55,000.” 

  After discussion, Councilmember Stille made a motion to approve the ordinance  

  as requested on first reading. Mayor pro tem Anderson seconded the motion,  

  which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 

 

VII.        Consent Agenda 

 

 A. Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Deed to Upstate Housing   

  Partnership Conveying Property Located at 412 Highland Avenue, Block  

  Map Number 7-16-01-255.00 and 414 Highland Avenue, Block Map Number  

  7-16-01-256.00 (Second Reading)  

  Presenter:  Martin Livingston, Neighborhood Services Director 

 B. Approving a Development Agreement Between the City of Spartanburg and  

  BF Spartanburg, Inc. (Second Reading) 

  Presenter:  Chris Story, Assistant City Manager 

 Councilmember Rice made a motion to approve the consent agenda on second 

 reading. Councilmember Brown seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 

 6 to 0. 

 

 VIII. Other Business 

 

 A.   Award of Contract for Demolition of Oakview Apartments 

          Presenter:  David Cook, Construction Project Manager 

  Mr. Cook presented the item to Council as follows: 

  “Staff solicited bids for the demolition of the Oakview Apartments. This work  

  consists of asbestos and lead base paint abatement, demolition of the structures  

  preparing the site and planting of grass. Bids were received from; 



3 

 

 

Webb-Harrell Construction                 Kernesville, NC                452,461.00 

 

Demtek LLC                                         Spartanburg, SC              496,183.00 

TOA, LLC                                           Norcross, GA                 537,500.00 

Eastern Environmental                         Hampstead, NC                689,875.00 

D H Griffin Wrecking Co.                   Duncan, SC                                     1,187,000.00 

 

  No bids from certified MWBE contractors were received.  Staff has reviewed the  

  qualifications of Webb-Harrell and determined that it is a qualified contractor.   

  Staff is recommending award of the contract to Webb-Harrell.   

 

  Please note that the demolition of Oakview Apartments will be phased as   

  buildings are vacated over the next several months.  Abatement in advance of  

  demolition of potentially hazardous materials will be conducted in accordance  

  with all health and environmental standards and monitored by independent air  

  quality sampling conducted by a third party contractor.   

                

  ACTION REQUESTED: Authorization for the City Manager to sign a contract  

  with Webb-Harrell Construction for demolition of the Oakview Apartments. 

 

  BUDGET AND FINANCIAL DATA: $452,461 from TK Gregg Project Fund.” 

  Councilmember Rice made a motion to approve the award of contract as   

  requested to Webb-Harrell Construction, Kernesville, NC in the amount of  

  $452,461.00. Councilmember Stille seconded the motion, which carried   

  unanimously 6 to 0. 

  

 B.   Boards and Commissions – Approval of Applicant for Zoning Board of   

  Adjustment and Appeals 

  Presenter:  Connie McIntyre, City Clerk 

  Ms. McIntyre presented Ryan Edward Gaylord’s application for    

  consideration by Council for appointment to the Zoning Board of    

  Adjustment and Appeals. 

  Councilmember Rice made a motion to waive the rules and appoint Mr. Gaylord  

  to the Zoning Board of Adjustment and Appeals. Councilmember Brown   

  seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 

           

 IX.         City Council Updates –  

    Councilmember Stille commented that Magnolia Street was looking great. She    

    mentioned that she had visited the new Speed Factory Indoor Karting with her children   

    and that it was big hit with them. She also shared that she had the opportunity to meet   

    with Allen Smith and Todd Horne to discuss the Chambers envisioning process. 

    Councilmember Brown mentioned that “Beauty and the Beast” opened the previous   

    Friday at Spartanburg Little Theatre to rave reviews, and encouraged everyone to go.   

    She shared that the “Art Walk” would be on Thursday from 5 until 8. She also   

    mentioned that she had attended the “Unity in the Community” event at Barnet Park.  



4 

 

    She said it was a successful event and a great opportunity for engaging with city police   

    officers. 

    Councilmember Henderson Myers mentioned the Town Hall meeting she held on   

    September 6. She thanked city staff members who attended, particularly Chief      

    Thompson, and provided information to the attendees. She shared that she also attended 

     the “Unity in the Community” event at Barnet Park, and though it was an excellent   

     event. She recognized Jalitha Moore, who she said was instrumental in organizing the   

     event. 

     Councilmember Rice shared that the new Speed Factory Indoor Karting was a hit at   

     his house also. He recognized County Councilmember Michael Brown, who was in    

     attendance at the meeting. 

     Mayor pro tem Anderson shared that he was downtown on Friday evening and it was 

     alive and vibrant. He commented that Magnolia St. was looking beautiful. He      

     recognized the 15
th

 anniversary of 911 and encouraged everyone to reflect on that day   

     realizing that Americans survived the attack and were stronger. He thanked all those   

     involved in the rescue and recovery, particularly the first responders. 

 

  X.    Executive Session Pursuant to Section 30-40-70 (a) (2) of the South Carolina Code  

    to Receive Legal Advice Relating to The Butterfly Creek Daylighting and   

    Park Projects  

               Council may take action on matters discussed in Executive Session after exiting  

               Executive Session. 

               Councilmember Brown made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session for the  reason 

 stated. Councilmember Rice seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 

 to 0. Council adjourned to Executive Session at 5:53 p.m. 

 

 Council reconvened at 6:25 p.m. Mayor White stated that discussion was held with no 

 decisions made. 

 

XI.    Consideration of an Ordinance Authorizing the Condemnation of Tax Map 

 Parcel  7-12-05-345.00 Needed for The Butterfly Creek Daylighting and Park 

 Projects 

 Presenter:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 

  

 Mayor White read Item XI.  

 Alex Evins, attorney with Parker Poe Attorneys, came forward to state that he 

 represented the owner of the parcel in question and that if Council approved first 

 reading of the ordinance, his client would file suit opposing the condemnation action 

 because he feels it is inappropriate. 

 

 Mayor pro tem Anderson made a motion to approve the ordinance as stated. 

 Councilmember Brown seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 

 

XII.         Discussion of Rental Property Registration 

 Presenter:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 



5 

 

 After discussion, it was the consensus of Council that a no fee registration of all 

 rental properties within the city limits would be required. Failure to register and 

 comply with code enforcement citations could result in the revocation of a properties 

 registration. A council appointed Housing Code Board would allow an appeal process 

 for landlords. If the revocation is upheld by that board, the property owner/landlord 

 and tenants would be given notice to vacate the property. 

 Mr. Memmott stated that staff would be back before Council with an ordinance in the 

 near future. 

 

XIII.       Adjournment – Councilmember Stille made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mayor  

                pro tem Anderson seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 0. The  

                meeting adjourned at 7:01 p.m.  

 

 

  

                 _________________________________ 

       Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VIII. A  



    REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 

 
 

TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager   

 

FROM: Martin Livingston, Neighborhood Services Director 
      

SUBJECT: Donation of Property – 581 and 589 Vernon Street  

 

DATE: September 26, 2016 

 

 

BACKGROUND:   
As part of the Northside Transformation Plan, the City of Spartanburg has in certain instances partnered 

with non-profit developers to build affordable housing in the community.  The Spartanburg Housing 

Authority is requesting the donation of two city owned lots on Vernon Street for a unique partnership that 

provides job training for young people and affordable housing. Habitat for Humanity of Spartanburg will 

build two single-family homes on Vernon Street for eligible families. The construction process will employ 

YouthBuild participants in the construction process providing job training and construction skills.  

YouthBuild is construction training program that focuses on GED/High School Diploma preparation.  

Community service and leadership training is provided for adults ages 18-24, while providing opportunities 

to prepare young adults for the working profession.  

 

 

Property Address Tax Map Number Property Type Sale Amount 

581 Vernon Street 7-12-01-140.03 Vacant Lot 5.00 

589 Vernon Street 7-12-01-140.01 Vacant Lot 5.00 

 

 

                                                                                                            

ACTION REQUESTED: Approval of an Ordinance conveying the property at 581 Vernon Street and 589 

Vernon Street to the Spartanburg Housing Authority for the YouthBuild and Spartanburg Habitat 

development. 

 

 

BUDGET AND FINANCIAL DATA:   Donation of property. 

 



ORDINANCE 

 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 

DEED TO SPARTANBURG HOUSING AUTHORITY 

CONVEYING PROPERTY LOCATED AT 581 VERNON 

STREET, BLOCK MAP NUMBER 7-12-01-140.03; AND 589 

VERNON STREET, BLOCK MAP NUMBER 7-12-01-140.01. 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Members of Council of the City of 

Spartanburg, South Carolina, in Council assembled: 

Section 1: Approve and authorize the sale of 581 Vernon Street, Block Map 

Sheet 7-12-01, Parcel 140.03 to Spartanburg Housing Authority for $5.00. 

Section 2: Approve and authorize the sale of 589 Vernon Street, Block Map 

Sheet 7-12-01, Parcel 140.01 to Spartanburg Housing Authority for $5.00. 

Section 4: The City Manager is authorized to sign necessary documents to 

execute this transaction. 

Section 5.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon the date of enactment. 

 

DONE AND RATIFIED this ____ day of October, 2016. 

 

 

   _________________________ 

   MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________ 

CITY CLERK 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_________________________ 

CITY ATTORNEY 

 

 

___ /___ / ___ 1st Reading 

 

___ /___ / ___ 2nd Reading 



Spartanburg County Assessor

Parcel:  7-12-01-140.01  Acres: 0

Name: CITY OF SPARTANBURG Land Value $0.00

Site: 589 VERNON ST Improvement Value $0.00

Sale: $$10 on 10-2011 Vacant= Qual=9 Accessory Value $0.00

Mail:

PO BOX 1749

Spartanburg, SC 29304

Total Value $0.00

The Spartanburg County Assessor's Office makes every effort to produce the most accurate information possible.  No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the
data herein, its use or interpretation. The assessment information is from the last certified taxroll. All data is subject to change before the next certified taxroll. PLEASE

NOTE THAT THE PROPERTY APPRAISER MAPS ARE FOR ASSESSMENT PURPOSES ONLY NEITHER SPARTANBURG COUNTY NOR ITS EMPLOYEES ASSUME
RESPONSIBILITY FOR ERRORS OR OMISSIONS ---THIS IS NOT A SURVEY---

Date printed:  09/21/16 : 11:21:24

mlivingston
Polygonal Line

mlivingston
Typewritten Text
VictoriaGardens

mlivingston
Typewritten Text
Fremont Apartment

CMcintyre
Rectangle



  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

IX. A  



    REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 

TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager      

 

FROM: Martin Livingston, Neighborhood Services Director 

      

SUBJECT: Highland Community – Cammie Clagett Survey 

  

DATE: September 26, 2016  

   

 

BACKGROUND: In an effort to assist the Spartanburg Housing Authority with the demolition of the 

vacant Cammie Clagett Public Housing Units, the City and non-profit partners will be implementing a 

process using Neighborhood Improvement Program (NIP) funds to purchase and demolish the property. As 

part of the process, the City and the Spartanburg Housing Authority will need to subdivide the property by 

individual parcels in order to qualify for the program. The survey of the property will involve 110 vacant 

units. The City was allocated an additional $1.6 million in NIP funds to acquire and demolish 

approximately 58 units. The other 52 units will be demolished as part of the existing NIP grant or 

additional funds will be requested from the funder, the South Carolina State Housing Finance and 

Development Authority.   

 

City staff bid the survey work and 3 bids were received. The cost of the survey work will be $63,000. All 

American Engineering Consultants was the most responsive bidder. No MWBE contractors submitted bids. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Staff is requesting approval to allow the City Manager to execute an 

agreement with All American Engineering Consultants to survey the Cammie Clagett sites.  

 

 

BUDGET AND FINANCIAL DATA: Reimbursement would be received from the Spartanburg Housing 

Authority in the amount of $63,000.00. 

Vendor City State Price MWBE  

Lavender, Smith & Assoc. Spartanburg SC 17,000.00  Line 1- 7 

Engineered Resources LLC Augusta GA 42,065.00  Line 1-7 

American Engineering Consultants Cayce SC 63,000.00  Line 1-8 



RESOLUTION 

ATHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO EXECUTE SURVEY AGREEMENT  

 
WHERE AS, the City of Spartanburg has been awarded certain Neighborhood Improvement Program 

(NIP) Funds and has allocated those funds to purchase and demolish approximately 110 units at Cammie 

Clagett Public Housing; and 

 

WHERE AS, the NIP requirements allow the City to subdivide property for the purpose of purchase and 

demolition; and 

 

WHEREAS, the partnership with the City and Spartanburg Housing Authority will allow the City to 

survey the property for purchase; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Spartanburg Housing Authority will fund the cost of the survey of 110 units to be 

demolished; and 

 

WHEREAS, All American Engineering Consultants was the most responsive bidder for the survey of the 

properties at Cammie Clagett; and  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Members of Council of the City of 

Spartanburg in Council assembled: 

 

 

Section 1.  Allow the City Manager to execute an agreement with All American Engineering Consultants 

for survey of the Cammie Clagett properties for a contract amount of 63,000. 

 

Section 2.  This Resolution is adopted this _____ day of __________, 2016. 

 

 

       __________________________________ 

        Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

________________________________ 

Cathy Hoefer McCabe, City Attorney 



S
 F

O
R

E
S

T
 S

T

S
 IR

W
IN

 A
V

E

H
IG

H
L

A
N

D
 A

V
E

B
E

A
C

O
N

 S
T

NORRIS ST

T
E

R
R

A
C

E
 R

D

S DANIEL MORGAN AVE

W HENRY ST

B
E

T
H

L
E

H
E

M
 D

R

P
IN

C
K

N
E

Y
 C

T

JO
H

N
 B

 W
H

IT
E

 S
R

 B
LV

D

C
O

N
C

O
R

D
 A

V
E

M
A

R
L

B
O

R
O

 R
D

WESTOVER DR

PRINCE HALL LN

GIBSON ST

SEAY ST

E
X

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
T

A
R

D
M

O
R

E
 R

D

IM
P

E
R

IA
L

 D
R

T
IM

O
T

H
Y

 S
T

BUNKER ST

NORRIS CT

W HAMPTON AVE

YA
R

D
LE

Y 
C

T

P
E

N
N

W
O

O
D

 D
R

LAVADA ST

μ 0 370 740 1,110 1,480185
Feet

Highland Area

March 2016
Demian Carpenter

Community Services
City of Spartanburg

Legend

Highland Crossing

Macedonia Baptist Church

Clammie Clagett

Bethelehem Center

Norris Ridge Apartments

Actvity Center

Stewart Park

Prince Hall Apartments

Parcel

Streets




